
UNIT£D STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
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RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Sean Davis 
Premier Community Bank 
Post Office Box 399 
Crestview. Florida 32536 

Re: Consent Ag;reement and Final Order 

Docket No. CWA-04-2010-5507(b) 


Dear Mr. Davis: 

Enclosed is • copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) that bas been 
finalized by the U.s. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 and the Regional Judicial 
Officer, Please make note of the provisions under Section V, 

Thank you for your cooperation in settling this matter. Should you have any questions or 
concerns, please contact Mr. ChriS Parker ofmy staff at (404) 562~9838 or your attorney may 
contact Ms. Judy Marsball, Attorney Advisor, at (404) 562-9533, 

~~~Q~ 
Denisse D, Diaz 
Acting Chief, Clean Water Enforcement Branch 
Water Protection Oivision 

Enclo::.ure 

cc: see attached list 

jl'lterne1 Address {URL}" htlp.ffWWw.epa,g¢V 
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U$.~ of Carbon Copies 

Mr. James Davis 
Crestview, Horida 

.h.1r, Terry Wells 
USACa Pens,,"ola field Office 
Pensacola. Florida 

Ms. Deborah Wegmann, Chief 
Spedal Projects and Enforcement Branch 
Jacksonville, Florida 

Mr. Timothy Rach 
Florida Departmenl of Environmental Protection 
Tallahassee, Florida 

Ms, Gail Carmody 
U.S. Fish and WHdHfe Service 
Panama City, Florida 

Mr. Lance Laird 
Northwest Rorida Water Management District 
Havana, Florida 



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 


1:11 THE MATIER OF: ) 

.") CONSENT AGIlliEME!'IT A'ND 

James Davis ) FINAL ORDER " 
Senn Davis ) 
Crt"Stview~ Florida ) ': • ;:t " r 

) ,.; 

RESPONDENTS. ) Docket No.; CWA-04·2010-5SO'l(bj"'"
.' , C ",

) -J 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

I. Statutory Authority 

1. This is a civil penalty proceeding under Section 309(g)(2)(A) of the: Clean Water 
Act ("CWA"). 33 U,S.C § 1319(g)(2)(A). and the Consulidated Rules ofPractice Governing the 
A.dministrallve Assessment ofCivil Penalties. /SSlWnce 0/Compliance ur Corrective Action 
Orders and the Revocntion, Termination or Suspension ojPennits, publi!>hed at 64 Fed, Reg, 
40176 (July 23. 1999), codified at 40 Code of Federal Reb'Ulations (CFK) Part 22 (Part 22), 

2. The Administrator has delegated this authority to the Regional Administrator 
Region 4, who in tum has delegated this authority to the Director of the Water Protet."tion 
Division. who in tum has delegated this authority to the Chief of the Clean Water Enforcement 
Branch of EPA Region 4 ("Complainilllt"). 

II. Statutory aud Regulatory Back2round 

3, Section 309(g)(1)(A) of the CWA, 3J U.S,C § 1319(g)( I)(A), states "[wlhenever, 
on the basis of any information available - the Administrator find" that any person ha'S violated 
[sect jon 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311j, .. , the Administrator ... may, aftcr coosulratlon 
with the State in which the violation OC('UTS, asse:=;s a class I civil penalty or a class n civil 
penalty under [33 U,S,C § 1319(g)(2)(8)1." 

4, Section 301(.) of the CWA, 33 U.S,C § 1311(a). states "[e!xccptas in 
compliance with, , , [Section 4Q4 of tile CWA. 33 C,S,C § 1314). the dii;charge of allY [dredged 
or fill material] by any person illall be unlawful." Sectinn 404 of the CWA. 33 U,S,C, § 1344. 
aUfhorizes the Secretary of the Army, acting through the Chief of Engineers, U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineer:;; r'COE"), to issue penuits for the discharge of dredged or fiU material into navigable 
waters. 

5, Section 502(12) of the CWA, 33 lLS.C § 1362(12). deline, a "discharge of 
pollutants" as "ralny addition of any pollutant to navigable waters from any point source. , , ," 



6. Section 502( 14) of the CWA, 33 U .s.c. § 1362( 14), define, "point source" as 
"[a]oy discernible, confined and discrete conveyance, including but not limited to any pipe, 
ditch, channel. tunnel, conduit ror] discrete fIssure ... from which pollutantIi are or may be
discharge-d." 

7. Section 502(7) of the CW A, 33 U.S.C § 1362(7), defines "navigable waters" as 
"[tJhe wateh> of the United States, including the territorial seas." 

8. Federal regulations under 40 C.F.R. § 232.2 define the term "waters of the United 
States" to include "wetlands." 

9. Federal regulations under40 C.ER. § 232.2 and 33 C.F.R. § 328.3(b) define 
"wetlands" as "[t}hosc areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or groundwater at a 
frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that tmder norma1 circumstances do support, a 
prevalence of vegetaliun typicnlly adapted for life in saturated soil conditions." 

III, Allegations. 

10. James Davis and Sean Davis ("'Respondents") arc "'persons" as defined by Section 
502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C § 1362(5). 

If. Respondents are thc owner and operator of a parcel of land located at 3350 New 
Ebenezer Road, Section 35, Township 6 North. Range 23 West, Wt~st of the town of Laurel Hill, 
Okalon," County, Florida, near 30"58'47 .9 IT' north latitude and 86'30'31.196" west longitude 
(the "Sile"). 

12, On or a.bout Junc 30, 2008, to the present, Respondents, or those acting on behalf 
of Respondent .. used earlh moving machinery to deposit dredged mId/or fill materiai in 
connection with the construction of a dam and private lake at the Site. 

13. R~pondents' activities at the Site impactedapproximate1y six acres of forested 
freshwater wetlands and approximately 1100 linear feet of an unnruncd perennial stream (the 
"Discharge Area"). The uru:mmed peretUlial stream is a perennial tributary of Big Creek: Big 
Creek is a perennial tributary of the Yellow River, a navigable.in-fact water of the United States, 
The Discltarge Area is indicated on the attached Exhibits A and B. 

14, The earth moving machinery employed by Respondents to deposit the dredged 
and/or fill material at the Di~chargc Area are "'point sources" as defined at Section § 502(14) of 
lheCWA, 33 U.S.c. § 062(14). 

15. TIle dredged and/or fiU material fire "pollutants" as defined at Section 502(6) of 
the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6). 
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16. R~pondents' deposition of dredged and/or fill material at the Discharge Area 
were to "navigable waters" as defined at S""'lion 502(7) of the CWA, 33 \LS,C. § 1362(7). 

17. At nu time during the discharge of dredged andlor fill material at the Discharge 
Area from June 30.2008, to the present did Respondents obtain a permit pursuam to Section 404 
of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344. authorizing the activities. 

18. Therefore. Respondents have violated Section 301 of the CWA. 33 U.S.c. § Dll. 
by discharging pollutants into navigable waters without a permit issued pursuant to Section 404 
oftheCWA. 33 U.S.C § 1344. 

19. Each day the material discharged by Respondents. remains in waters of the United 
Sta~ without the requiredpennlt issued pursuant to Section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C, § 1344, 
constitutes a day of violation of Section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311. 

IV. Stipulations and Findings 

20. Complainant and Respondents have {."Onferred for the purpose of settlement Wlder 
40 C.P.R. Part 22, 18 and desire to resolve this matter and seuk the allegations described herein 
without a fonual hearing, Therefore, without gathering any evidence or testimony, making of 
any argument. or adjudkA:tting any issue in this matter. and in accordance Vtith 40 C,P.R. Part 
22. 13(b), this Couse-nt Agreement and Final Order ("c'"\FO") will simultaneously commence 
and conclude this matter. 

21. For the purposes of this CAPO, Rcspondento; admit the jurisdictional allegations 
set out above and neither admit nor deny the factual allegations set out above, 

22. Respondentt) hereby waive their right to contest the allegations set out above and 
its right to appeal the Final Order accompanying this Consent Agreem,cnt. 

23. Respondents consent to the assessment of and agreeii to pay lhe administrative 
penalty as set forth in this CAFO. 

24. By signing this CAFO. Re~p{}ndents certify that the information they have 
supplied concerning this matter was at the time of submission, and is, truthftd, accurate, and 
complete for cach such submission, response and statement. Respondents realize that there are 
significant penalties for submitting fnlse or misleading information, including the possibility of 
fines and/or imprisonment for knowing submission of such information. 

25. EPA reserves the right to assess and coUect any and all civil penahies for any 
violation described in this CAFO to the extent that any infonnation or cerufication provided by 
Respondents was materially false or inaccurate at the time such information or certification was 
provided to EPA 
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26. Complainant and Respondents agree to settle this matter by their execution of this 
CAFO. The parties agree that the !)ettlement of this malter is in the public interest and that this 
CAPO is COnStllte,nt with the applicable re-quirement~ of the CWA. 

V. Payment 

n Under Section 309(g)(2)(A) ofth. CWA. 33 li.S.C. § 1319(g)(1)(A). and 40 
C.F,R. § 19. and con.'\idering the nature of the violations and other relevant factors. EPA bas 
detennined that ftyc, ThousIDldJJoHars ($5.000,QO) is an appropriate civil penalty to senle this 
action. 

28. Respondents shall submit payment of the penalty ;;pecified in the preceding 
paragraph within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this CArD via a cashier's or certified 
check, payahle to the order of ''Treasurer, United States of America,'" The chC<'k shall reference 
on its face the name of Respondents and the Docket Number of this CAPO. Such payment shall 
be submitted by U.s. Postal Service to: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cim..-innati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 

Sl. Louis, MO 63197-9000. 


29. At the time of payment, Re~fIDndcuts shall send a separate copy of the check, and 
a written statement that payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO, to the following 
persons at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960 

and 
Ms. Mary E. Halback 
Wetlands Enforcement Se;;:tion 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agcm.'Y - Region 4 

61 Forsytl, Street. S.W. 

Atlanta. Georgia 30303-8960. 


30. Civil penalty payments under this CAPO are penalties within the meaning of 
Section 162(f) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.c. § t 62(f), or of 26 C. F. R. § 1.162·21 and 
are not tax deductible expenditures for purposes; of federal law. 
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31, Under Section 309(g)(9) of the CWA, 33 U,S,C § 1319(g)(9). failure by the 
Respondents to pay the penalty as~essed by the CAFO in full by its due date may ,o;uhject the 
Respondents to a civil action to coHcct the assessed penalty plus interest (at currently prevailing 
rate.. from the effective date of this CAFO), attorney'~ fees, costs for collection proceedings and 
a quarterly nonpayment penalty for each quarter during which such faUure to pay persists. Such 
nonpayment penalty shall be In an amount equal to twenty percent of the aggregate amount of 
:such penalty and nonpayment penalty which are unpaid as of the beginning of such quarter. In 
any such collection action, the validity. amount and appropriateness of the penalty and of this 
CAFO shall not he sutl,fect to review. 

VI. General Provi!dons 

32. This CAFO shaH not relieve Respondents of their obligation to comply with all 
applicable provisions of federal, state, or local law. nor shall it be c()nstmed to be a ruling on, or 
detennination of, any isslle related to any federal, state, or focal pemnc Other than as expressed 
herein. compliance with this CAPO shall not be a defens,e to any actions subsequently 
commenced under federa! law8 and regulations administered by the EPA 

33. Nothing in thi;; CAFO shaH be con.'~trued as prohibiting. altering, or in any way 
limiting the ability of United States to seek any other remedies or sanctions availabJe by virtue of 
Respondents' violation of this CAFO or of the statutes amI regulations upon which this 
agreement is based, or for Respondent.,' violation of any federal or state statute. regulation or 
permit. 

34. Except as utheI'W'ise set forth in this document, this CAFO constitutes a settlement 
by Complainant anu Respondents of all claims for civil penalties under the CW A with respect to 
only those violations aHcged in thi~ CAFO, Ext.-ept as otherwise set forth in this document. 
compliance with this CAFO shall resolve the allegations of violations contained in this CAFO. 
Nothing in Ulis CAFO is intended to nor shall be construed to operate in any way to resolve any 
criminalliabilit), of the Respondents, or other liabBity resulting from violations that were not 
alleged in this CAFO. Other than as expressed in this document. Complainant does not waive 
any right to bring an enforcement action against Respondents for violation of any federal or state 
statute, regulation Of permit, to initiate an action for Imminent and substantial endangerment, or 
to pursue criminal enforce,ment. 

35. Each undersigned representative of the panies to this CAFO certifies that he is 
fully authorized to eUler into the terms and conditions of this CAPO and to execute and legally 
bind that party to it 

36. Thi~ CAFe applies to and is hinding upon Respondents llnd any officers. 
directors, employees, agents, :-.uccessors and a~signs of the Respondents. 
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37. The obljgallom of the Respondents under this CAFO are joint and several. 

38. Any change in the legal stanIS of Respondents including. but not limited to, any 
transfer of assets of real or personal property, shall not alter Respondents' responsibilities under 
this CAFO. 

39. Each party shall bear its own cost.. and attorneys fees. in connectjon with the 
action resolved by this CAPO. 

40. Tn accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part 22.5. the individuals below are authorized to 
receive servkc relating to this proceeding. 

For Complainant: 	 Judy Marshall 

Associate Regional Counsel 

u.s. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta. Georgia 30303 
(404) 562-9533 

For Re:;pondent: 	 Sean Davis 

Premier Community Bank 

P.O. Box 399 
Crestview, Florida 32536 

41. The parties acknowledge and agree that this CAPO is subject to the requirements 
of 40 C.ER. § 22.45(c)(4), which provides a right to petition to set a ..jde a consent agreement 
and proposed final order based on comments rc,-"Cived during the public comment period. 

42. Under Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. *1319(g), and 40 C.P.R. § 
22.38(b). Complainant represent.. that the Slate of Florida was provided a prior opportunity to 
consult with Complainant regarding this matter. 

43, This CAPO in no way affects the rights of the Complainant as agaimt any person 
or entity not a party to this CAPO. 

VIi, Release by Respondents 

44. Respondent~ hercby covenant not to suc and agrees not to assert any claims or 
causes uf action against the United States, induding any department. agency or in:o.trumentality 
of the United St~tes. with respect to the Site or this CAFO, including but not limited to, any 
claim that there ha.;; heen a taking of Respondents' property without compensation, 
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L'NITED STATF,s ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGEI'\CY 

REGION 4 


IN THE MATTER OF: ) 

) 

.James Davis ) 

Sean Davis ) COl\SENT AGREEMENT A.'ID 
Crestview, FWrida ) FINAL ORDER 

) 
RESPONDENTS. ) DockelNo.: CWA-04-201o.S507(b) 

) 

FINALQRDER 

In accordance with the Consolidated Rules ofPractice Governing the Administrative 
Assessment of Civil Penalties. Issuance ojCompliance or Corrective Action Orders and the 
Revocation, Termination or Su!~petlsion ofPermits, 40 C.ER. Part 22, and authorities delegated 
to me, Lhe forgoing Consent Agreement is hereby approved and incorporated by reference into 
this Final Order. Under Section 309(g)(2)(A) or me CWA, 33 U,S,c' § 1319(g)(2)(A), 
Respondents are hereby ordered to comply with the terms of the foregoing Consent AgreemenL 

U,S, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

k-
Susan B, ~Sch7-U:-'bQ~..e.~~~ 
Regional Judicial Officer 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have this day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing 
CAlllSClll Agreement and Final Order in the matter of: Docket No. CWA-04-201O-5S07(b) on the 
parties Ii:;tted below in the manner indicated: 

EPA Internal Mail: 

By hand-delivery: 

By CCltified mail. 
return receipt requested: 

Dated: i d- -~7-/0 

Mr. Chris Parker 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Wetlands Enforcement Section 
61 Forsyth Street, S.w. 
Atlanta. Georgia 30303 

Ms. Judy Marshall 
C.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 ForsythStreet,S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Mr. Sean Davis 
President & CEO 
Premier Conununily Bank 
P.O. Box 399 
Crestview, Hon,~'d",a~,,¥,,-

Patricia Bullock 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
U. S, Environmental Protection Agency. Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street. s.w. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(404) 562-9511 


